City of Seattle Request for Proposal #FFD2856
Addendum 

Date: May 3, 2011

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal, FFD2856, titled Class 6, 7 and 8 Truck Chassis released on 04/13/2011.  The due date and time of 05/17/2011 @ 2:00 PM (Pacific) remains unchanged.  This addendum includes both questions from prospective bidders and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting the proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	ITB/RFP Revisions

	1) 
	4/20/11
	5/3/11
	Item 16.8 in the spec states “Oil based grease seal, “Stemco” or FAS Automotive Engineer approved equivalent.” 

Question: We are unable to offer the Stemco oil seal but will be offering the CR Scotseal XL oil seal.  Dana Spicer uses the Con Met hub and the only wheel seat they will approve is the Scotseal XL. 
	Since it is required by the preferred axle manufacturer, it is an acceptable equivalent. 
	

	2) 
	4/20/11
	5/3/11
	Item 4.5 in the spec states “Factory provided a spring applied/air released, engine ECM controlled fan clutch.  “Horton” is preferred.” 

Question:  Neither Cummins nor Paccar engines are using the Horton fan clutch. Both have selected the BorgWarner fan clutch for their engines.  May we use the Borg Warner?
	The spec states “Horton” is preferred”.  If you offer a different clutch, you should include the information and comparison in your proposal.  The evaluation team will determine if it is equivalent, inferior or superior.  Your proposal will be graded accordingly. 
	

	3) 
	4/20/11
	5/3/11
	Item 16.15 in the spec states “Front tires should be Michelin XZE 255/70R22.5 steel radial tires”.  

Question: I am unable to offer the Michelin XDE M&S specified but am able to offer the Michelin XDN2 in the sizes requested.  May I offer the XDN2 in my proposal?
	If you offer a different tire you should include the information and comparison in your proposal.  The evaluation team will determine if it is equivalent, inferior or superior.  Your proposal will be graded accordingly. 
	

	4) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	General Question: What if there is no manufacture’s list price because it is from a local vendor? How do we discount? 
	For both OEM and non-OEM parts that do not have a manufacturer’s list price, please list the dealer price with a 0% discount.  On all parts that do have a dealer list price, please note the discount percentage off manufacturer’s list. 
	

	5) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	How often is a price increase allowed?
	Per the RFP, pricing must stay firm for one year after contract award.  Price increases are allowed on an annual basis. Pricing should be firm fixed for one year (365 days/year).
	

	6) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Could you post the list of attendees online?
	Yes, see website
	

	7) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	If there is a brand name specified and you are only able to provide an ‘equal-to-brand name’ does that diminish your competitiveness in the process?
	Yes- the City is trying to standardize and the brands listed are the brands we stock; you will lose points if you offer another brand.
	

	8) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	If we can provide the brand name, but we suggest a different brand to save money, will we lose points? 
	Yes- the City is trying to standardize and the brands listed are the brands we stock; you will lose points if you offer another brand.
	

	9) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	How will the evaluating team score past experience with the City? How will you evaluate vendors with no experience with the City?
	Vendor performance rating will be based on the history the evaluation team has had with the vendor.  For example Poor past performance = 1-2, no history = 3, good performance = 4-5.
	

	10) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 1.9 in the spec states:  Filters shall be easily accessible.  

Question: How do we determine this?
	The spec qualifies that statement by saying: “without removing or disconnecting other components”.
	

	11) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 3.2 in the spec states: All air tanks, air dryers, coolers, etc. must be mounted inside frame rails or in an FAS Automotive Engineer alternate acceptable location.

Question: Does “inside” mean below frame rails?
	The intent of this section that components be mounted in a location where they are protected from damage, and leave clear frame rails for mounting components. Exceptions to “inside the rails” will need to be handled on an individual basis.
	

	12) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 6.3.1 in the spec states: “If switches are required to be added by the dealer, they are to be “Wired Rite System” heavy duty rocker switch assemblies.”

Question: Can we use factory equivalent switches?
	Dealers are required to use Wired Rite switch system unless unused factory switches are available.
	

	13) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Question: Do items 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 all cover the parking brake
	Yes
	

	14) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 10.2 in the spec states:  Actuation chambers shall be 30-square inches minimum
Question: Does the “30 square inches minimum” apply to all brake chambers or to the rear parking brake chambers only? 
	No
	

	15) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 10.3  in the spec states: “Anchorlock” or “MGM” spring brake chambers with manufacturer’s heaviest available housings and brackets are to be provided. 

Question: Does this apply to all brake chambers or to the rear parking brake chambers only? 


	All brake chambers need to be the same manufacturer. 
	

	16) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 10.3 in the spec states: “Anchorlok” or “MGM” spring brake chambers with manufacturer's heaviest available housings and brackets are to be provided.

Question: Are Haldex considered an equivalent?
	No- the City is trying to standardize and the brands listed are the brands we stock; you will lose points if you offer another brand.
	

	17) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 10.6 in the spec states:  Air tank drain valves shall be provided and located in the lowest part of the tank.  They shall be easily accessed from outside the frame or have cables routed to the outside of the frame for remote draining.

Question: Do you want lanyards routed to outside of the frame?
	Yes-The City wants operators to be able to drain water from the air tanks without crawling under the truck.  If lanyards are provided they should be routed to the outside of the frame rails, and secured so that they will stay put
	

	18) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 10.10 in the spec states: Trailer air brake lines shall extend to the end of frame. 

Question: Do you want this as standard?
	Everything in the base spec is standard.  Since the majority of our trucks need to tow a trailer at some point in their lives, we are making the air and electric to the end of the frame as standard with deductions in the options for not installing them.
	

	19) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 11.3 in the spec states: “An aluminum cab is preferred.”

Question: Is a steel cab considered equivalent?
	No.  Aluminum is lighter weight and generally corrosion free, and is what the City of Seattle has requested.  
	

	20) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 11.12 in the spec states: “Seats, Inc., Eldorado or Bostrom Liberty I mid back air suspension driver and passenger seats”

Question: Are National 2000 seats an equivalent?
	The National Standard 2000 is not an equivalent.  National Premium 2000 can be considered an equivalent.  
	

	21) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 11.12 in the spec states: “mid back air suspension driver and passenger seats”

Question: Why not high back seats? 
	We specify mid back so everyone is bidding equivalent seats.  We would ask you to quote high back seats in the options. 
	

	22) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 11.13 in the spec states: Describe dash configuration.”

Question: Is a picture acceptable? 
	Yes-A picture, owner’s manual page, anything that will give the evaluation team a better understanding of the dash board configuration would be acceptable.
	

	23) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 11.13 in the spec states:  “dash mounted instruments are required.  Brake application pressure gauge.” 

Question: It is not part of the standard package.  Where would you want it mounted?
	The mounting location would have to be handled on an individual truck basis between the dealer and the Engineer.  
	

	24) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 11.15 in the spec states:  Maximum protection rubber cab floor surface available from manufacturer.  Floor mats both sides are preferred.

Question: Does this mean the City wants rubber flooring with rubber mats?  
	Yes.
	

	25) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 12.1 in the spec states:  “Steel “C” channel front bumper is preferred.”

Question: We do not offer C channel bumpers.  Can we offer a substitute?  
	Yes.  Please describe your offering in detail, you will be graded accordingly
	

	26) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 12.2 in the spec states:  “Provide frame mounted front tow eyes or hitch.” 

Question: Is a tow hook acceptable?
	Yes, Front tow hooks are acceptable as long as they meet the rest of the spec requirements. 
	Change the spec to read: Provide frame mounted front tow eyes, hooks or hitch.

	27) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 13.3 in the spec states:  “Wheels shall be painted gloss white, all surfaces.”

Question: Are powder coated white wheels acceptable?
	Yes, powder coating is a superior product to wet painting. 
	

	28) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 14.1 in the spec states:  “Approximately a 26,000 lbs GVW chassis.

Question: How close is “Approximately”?
	Delete “approximately”.
	Change the spec to read: A 26,000 lbs GVW chassis is to be provided.  

	29) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 16.4 in the spec states: “Allison 2500 RDS…with touchpad shift control”

Question: The touchpad is not available with this transmission from the factory.  Do you want the standard “T” bar or an aftermarket touch pad? 
	Factory T bar
	Change the spec to read:  “Allison 2500 RDS six speed wide ratio transmission is to be provided.  The transmission for this application shall be provided with “T” bar shift control.”

	30) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 16.11 in spec states: A Dana Spicer 16,000 lbs capacity rear axle is preferred. 

Question:  Would you accept Meritor axle? 
	You may propose Meritor but you will be downgraded. 
	

	31) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 16.15 in the spec states: Front tires should be Michelin XZE 255/70R22.5 steel radial tires.

Question: Should these be 11R22.5?
	Yes.
	Change the spec to read: Front tires should be Michelin XZE 11R22.5 steel radial tires.

	32) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 16.20 in the spec states: Automatic slack adjusters are required.  Haldex are preferred.

Question: Will you accept Meritor slack adjusters?
	You may propose Meritor but you will be, you will be graded accordingly.
	

	33) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 16.22 in the spec states:  The preferred tank would….be located beneath the street side door.  

Question: Why do you prefer the street side?
	That is the side the driver is on.  It makes refueling more convenient.  
	

	34) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 17.1 in the spec states:  Any factory available, front fender extensions are preferred.

Question: Are you asking for fender flares or mud flaps? 
	Yes, we are actually referring to fender flares. 
	Change the spec to read:  Any factory available, nonmetallic front fender flares are preferred.

	35) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 17.2 in the spec states:  Optima yellow top AGM batteries should be provided in an aluminum battery box.  

Question: Will you accept Alliance AGM batteries?
	Alliance can be used but since Optima are our standard, you will be graded accordingly.
	

	36) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 17.2 in the spec states:  Optima yellow top AGM batteries should be provided in an aluminum battery box.  

Question: Can we use steel battery box?
	You may use steel but since we prefer aluminum, points will be deducted.
	

	37) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 17.2 in the spec states:  Optima yellow top AGM batteries should be provided in an aluminum battery box.  

Question: Can we use steel battery box cover?
	You may use steel but since we prefer aluminum, points will be deducted.
	

	38) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 18.2 in the spec states:  Right hand door lower observation window is preferred.

Question: Can we use a downward sloped mirror in lieu of a window?
	You may use a downward sloped mirror but since we prefer a window, points will be deducted.
	

	39) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 18.3 in the spec states:  Dual air horns, in addition to dual electric horns, are to be provided. 

Question: Will you accept a single air horn and a single electric horn?
	No.
	

	40) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 19.1 in the spec states:  Approximately a 34,000 lbs GVW chassis is to be provided.
	Delete the word “approximately”.
	Change the spec to read:  A 34,000 lbs GVW chassis is to be provided.

	41) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 21.2 in the spec states:  Factory provided, dual stage, intake air cleaner.

Question: Can you define what you are looking for with the term “dual stage”?
	Delete dual stage requirement
	Change the spec to read:   Factory provided intake air cleaner.

	42) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 23.3 in the spec states:  Dual air horns, in addition to dual electric horns, are to be provided. 

Question: Will you accept a single air horn and a single electric horn?
	No.
	

	43) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 24.13 in the spec states:  The third and fourth batteries are to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached).

Question: The drawing was not attached.  Can you attach it?
	Yes, see attached
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	44) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 24.15 in the spec states:   Trailer wiring to the end of the frame. 
	This is in the main spec.  
	Delete from options list.

	45) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 29.2 in the spec states:  Factory provided, dual stage, intake air cleaner.

Question: Can you define what you are looking for with the term “dual stage”?
	Delete dual stage requirement
	Change the spec to read:   Factory provided intake air cleaner.

	46) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 29.12 in the spec states:  A Dana Spicer D-47-170P, 46,000 lbs capacity rear axle is preferred.
	This should say “D-46”
	Change the spec to read: A Dana Spicer D-46-170P, 46,000 lbs capacity rear axle is preferred.

	47) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 29.13 in the spec states:  46,000 lbs. rated Chalmers model 854-46 rear suspension is preferred.

Question: Can we provide a Hendrickson suspension? 
	No.  Please quote the Chalmers in the base and the Hendrickson in the options section. 
	Change the spec to read: 46,000 lbs. rated Chalmers model 854-46 rear suspension is required.

	48) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 29.21 in the spec states: Front tires should be Michelin XZY3 385/65R22.5 steel radial tires.

Question: Isn’t this tire too small to handle the load?
	Yes
	Change the spec to read: Front tires should be Michelin XZY3 425/65R22.5 steel radial tires.

	49) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 30.2 in the spec states:  Optima yellow top AGM batteries should be provided in an aluminum battery box.  

Question: Can we use steel battery box?
	You may use steel but since we prefer aluminum, points will be deducted.
	

	50) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 30.2 in the spec states:  Optima yellow top AGM batteries should be provided in an aluminum battery box.  

Question: Can we use steel battery box cover?
	You may use steel but since we prefer aluminum, points will be deducted.
	

	51) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 31.3 in the spec states:  Dual air horns, in addition to dual electric horns, are to be provided. 

Question: Will you accept a single air horn and a single electric horn?
	No.
	

	52) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 33.1 in the spec states:  Approximately a 66,000 lbs GVW chassis is to be provided.  
	Delete “approximately”.
	Change the spec to read: A 66,000 lbs GVW chassis is to be provided.  

	53) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 35.4 in the spec states:  Allison 3500 RDS wide ratio six speed transmission is to be provided.  

Question: The 3500RDS does not meet the torque rating.  Can we supply a 3000RDS?
	Yes.
	Change the spec to read: Allison 3000 RDS close ratio six speed transmission is to be provided.  

	54) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 35.12 in the spec states:  A Dana Spicer D-47-170P, 46,000 lbs capacity rear axle is preferred.
	This should say “D-46”
	Change the spec to read: A Dana Spicer D-46-170P, 46,000 lbs capacity rear axle is preferred.

	55) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 35.12 in the spec states:  The preferred tank would….be located beneath the street side door.

Question: The tank cannot be mounted there because that is where the axle is.  Can you change the spec accordingly? 
	Yes
	Change the spec to read:   The preferred tank would….be located behind the street side tire.

	56) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 39.1 in the spec states:  Approximately a 72,000 lbs GVW chassis is to be provided.  
	Delete “approximately”.
	Change the spec to read: A 72,000 lbs GVW chassis is to be provided.  

	57) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 41.2 in the spec states:  Factory provided, dual stage, intake air cleaner.

Question: Can you define what you are looking for with the term “dual stage”?
	Delete dual stage requirement
	Change the spec to read:   Factory provided intake air cleaner.

	58) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 41.13 in the spec states:  46,000 lbs. rated Chalmers, Hendrickson or equivalent air rear suspension is preferred.  

Question:  Why is the Hendrickson suspension acceptable here but not in the other class 8 chassis?
	This is an air ride suspension. 
	

	59) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 42.0

Question: Are rear ¼ fenders required?
	No.
	

	60) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 42.6 in the spec states:   The kit should consist of a Chelsea™ Hot Shift PTO, 50 GPM Commercial gear pump, hydraulic reservoir, return filter, hoses, quick disconnect couplers and control valves.
Question: Does the kit include the hoses to the trailer. 
	The kit is to include all items that will make it a fully functional tractor ready to tow including the hoses to the trailer. 
	

	61) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 47.3 in the spec states:  Four (4) complete sets of keys for all locks shall be provided with the unit.
Question: Do you want the keys to match the existing trucks in the fleet? 
	No
	

	62) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 47.3 in the spec states:  Four (4) complete sets of keys for all locks shall be provided with the unit.
Question: Do you want matching keys for all new trucks delivered? 
	No
	

	63) 
	4/22/11
	5/3/11
	Item 47.8 in spec states: Indicate the estimated number of calendar days to deliver a vehicle after receipt of order:

Question: How much weight is put in ‘time of delivery’ during the evaluation?
	5% of the overall score is rated on delivery schedule.  The City understands that deliveries fluctuate with factory and component backlog.  We ask you quote your current delivery times to the best of your ability. 
	

	64) 
	4/26/11
	5/3/11
	I see in the options for all bids, we’re asked to provide alternate GVW rating options and in different option sections we’re asked to provide optional axles with different axle ratings. These different GVW ratings are a function of which axles are selected. If we offer all axles front and rear, is that satisfactory to satisfy GVW option spec?
	Yes it is. 
	

	65) 
	4/26/11
	5/3/11
	General Question: Considering the potential manipulation of the bid process when option prices are not included in price evaluation and the ensuing potential for paying higher prices than would have otherwise been paid, will the City of Seattle amend RFP No. FFD-2856 to include option prices in price evaluation?
	Prior to due date, the City RFP committee will be choosing a specific number of options to be included in the price evaluation process. The options will be provided to the buyer before the proposals are due. There will be a specific number chosen along with a number of alternates, so that all venders will be judged on the same options
	

	66) 
	4/26/11
	5/3/11
	General Question: By “list price” do you mean the list price published by the truck manufacturer?
	Yes


	

	67) 
	4/26/11
	5/3/11
	General Question: Will the City of Seattle amend RFP No. FFD-2856 so that option prices are bid as actual amounts and not presented solely as a discount percentage off list price? 
	Yes
	See Specifications - Replace Section 24.0, Section 26.0, Section 32.0, Section 38.0 and Section 44.0 with the attached document.

[image: image2.emf]Revised Options  Section.doc




	68) 
	5/2/11
	5/3/11
	No mention of front axle requirements are mentioned pg 13
	
	See Specifications - Add 21.6-A Dana Spicer 12,000 lbs capacity front steer axle is preferred. Provide technical information for alternative front axle if offered. 

	69) 
	5/2/11
	5/3/11
	Also no mention of front springs pg 13
	
	See Specifications - Add 21.7 Taper leaf springs rated at 12,000 lbs capacity.

	70) 
	5/3/11
	5/3/11
	
	
	See Specifications – 48.4 will not be included in the price evaluation.
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24.0 Options for Class 6 and 7 Cab Chassis (Pre-selected items below will be a part of the evaluation process)

		24.1 Provide pricing for any alternate engine manufacturers and models offered by the factory.  Describe complete detail including horsepower, torque ratings and curves.  List engine manufacturer provided warranty coverage packages available for engines quoted.

		



		24.2 Provide pricing for an engine exhaust brake.  State make, model, and braking capacity provided.

		



		24.3 Provide pricing for any alternative automatic transmission models available for each chassis configuration.  Transmissions shall be fitted with PTO provisions and programming shall be determined at delivery.

		



		24.4 Provide pricing to provide alternate mirror configurations, including dual power mirrors, manually controlled mirrors, heated mirrors, above door mirrors, front hood mounted angle mirrors and convex mirrors.

		



		24.5 Provide pricing for automatic air tank drains, in lieu of manual drains specified.

		



		24.6 Provide pricing to provide a 10,000 lbs. capacity, air lift, drop axle mounted at a location directed by the FAS engineer.  Drop axle provided shall automatically retract in reverse and shall be steerable.  Wheel and tire provided on lift axle should be lowest profile 19.5 inch radius tires that meet the load capacity of the lift axle, same manufacturer as chassis tire.  The lift axle control valve and pressure regulator shall be located outside of the cab per Washington State law.

		



		24.7 Provide pricing for alternate GVWRs and their corresponding axle/suspension capacities throughout the range of trucks proposed.

		



		24.8 Provide pricing to provide alternate rear axle suspensions available, including alternate models meeting the base configuration i.e. air suspensions.  List any alternate axle manufacturers and ratings separately.  List any axle configuration options available including differential locking, and traction control options

		



		24.9 Provide pricing to provide alternate front axle/ suspension configuration(s).  List separately any alternative manufacturers and products provided.

		



		24.10 Provide pricing to provide any factory available low-profile chassis/frame configurations available in this GVW range.  Completely describe frame, liner, suspension, wheel, and tire differences in these configurations.

		



		24.11 Provide pricing to provide a frame with full length liner.  List section modulus (SM) and frame configuration offered.

		



		24.12 Provide pricing to provide three (3) Group 31 - 800 CCA (minimum each) 12 Volt, AGM Optima Yellow Top Drycell batteries in lieu of the quantity specified.  The third battery is to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached).

		



		24.13 Provide pricing to provide four (4) Group 31 - 800 CCA (minimum each) 12 Volt, AGM Optima Yellow Top Drycell batteries in lieu of the quantity specified.  The third and fourth batteries are to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached).

		



		24.14 Provide pricing for alternate seats, both passenger and driver, including 3rd person bench seat

		



		24.15 Provide pricing for factory supplied trailer towing options, including:


A. Indicator for trailer ABS system status provided in the cab.


B. Trailer wiring to the end of the frame 


C. Trailer air brake connectors at the end of the frame

D. Cab mounted hand trailer brake controller shall be provided, when trailer brakes are ordered as an option.  The controller is to be within easy reach of the driver.  State location of controller

E. Glad hands.

		



		24.16 Provide pricing to provide any factory available cab options including:


A. Price to provide any severe service cab options (including aluminum diamond plates tread flooring).


B. Price to provide heater shut off valves.


C. Price to provide map pockets on drivers and passengers door.


D. Price for any available extended cab options.

		



		24.17 Provide pricing to provide stationary grill, state any requirements or restrictions with this option

		



		24.18 Provide pricing for any alternative paint options available from the factory.

		



		24.19 Provide pricing to paint the top of the hood black. 

		



		24.20 Provide pricing to provide any factory or component manufacturers diagnostic software and cabling available.

		



		24.21 Provide pricing to provide any optional extended warranties offered by the factory.

		



		24.22 Provide pricing to provide any factory authorized service technician training available.  Training sessions should be conducted at the City of Seattle specified facility at a date and time mutually agreed upon.  The City expects the trainer to identify components, typical repairs and maintenance of the trucks, inform mechanics on procedures and safety type issues that they need to be aware of, new technologies and other related subjects.

		



		24.23 Provide pricing for three (3) copies each of the following manuals are preferred at time of delivery:

A. Chassis manufacturer's parts and service manual.


B. Engine manufacturer's parts and service manual.


C. Transmission manufacturer's parts and service manual.


D. Rear axle manufacturer's parts and service manual.


E. Suspension manufacturer's parts and service manual.


F. Any and all parts available in CD-ROM format

		



		24.24  Provide pricing for front end PTO and bumper.

		



		24.25 Provide pricing for alternate fuel and DEF tanks, sizes and locations.

		



		24.26 Provide pricing and describe any optional exhaust system configurations. 

		



		24.27 Provide pricing for any extended or alternate cab configurations.

		



		24.28  Provide discount percentage off of list price for any fleet  appropriate options that would be a benefit to the City of Seattle which have been omitted from this specification.

		





26.0  Options for Class 6 and 7 Hybrids (Pre-selected items below will be a part of the evaluation process)

		26.1  Provide pricing for all compatible auxiliary power generators (APG) systems available from the manufacturer.

		



		26.2  Provide pricing for all other hybrid system options available.

		



		26.3 Provide pricing for alternate fuel and DEF tanks, sizes and locations.

		



		26.4 Provide pricing and describe any optional exhaust system configurations. 

		





32.0 Options for Class 8 Cab Chassis (Pre-selected items below will be a part of the evaluation process)

		32.1 Provide pricing to provide any alternate engine manufacturers and models offered by the factory.  Describe complete detail including horsepower, torque ratings and curves.  List engine manufacturer provided warranty coverage packages available for engines quoted.

		



		32.2 Provide pricing to provide an engine exhaust brake.  State make, model, and braking capacity provided.

		



		32.3 Provide pricing to provide any alternative 6 speed Allison automatic transmission models available for each chassis and GVWR configuration.  Transmissions shall be fitted with PTO provisions and programming shall be determined at delivery.

		



		32.4 Provide pricing to provide alternate mirror configurations, including dual power mirrors, manually controlled mirrors, heated, above door mirrors, front hood mounted angle mirrors and convex mirrors.

		



		32.5 Provide pricing for automatic air tank drains, in lieu of manual drains specified.

		



		32.6 Provide pricing to provide all available capacity air lift, drop axles mounted at a location directed by the FAS engineer.  Drop axle provided shall automatically retract in reverse and shall be steerable.  Wheel and tire provided on lift axle shall be lowest profile 19.5 inch radius tires that meet the load capacity of the lift axle, same manufacturer as chassis tire.  Air pressure gauge and valve for adjusting drop axle pressure will be located outside of cab per Washington State law.

		



		32.7 Provide pricing for alternate GVWRs and their corresponding axle/suspension capacities and model designations throughout the range of trucks proposed.

		



		32.8 Provide pricing to provide alternate rear axle suspensions available, including alternate models meeting the base configuration i.e. air suspensions.  List any alternate axle manufacturers and ratings separately.  List any axle configuration options available including differential locking, and traction control options.

		



		32.9 Provide pricing to provide alternate front axle/ suspension configuration(s).  List separately any alternative manufacturers and products provided.

		



		32.10 Provide pricing to provide a frame with full length liner.  List section modulus (SM) and frame configuration offered.

		



		32.11 Provide pricing to provide three (3) Group 31 - 800 CCA (minimum each) 12 Volt, AGM Optima Yellow Top Drycell batteries in lieu of the quantity specified.  The third battery is to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached)

		



		32.12 Provide pricing to provide four (4) Group 31 - 800 CCA (minimum each) 12 Volt, AGM Optima Yellow Top Drycell batteries in lieu of the quantity specified.  The third and fourth batteries are to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached).

		



		32.13 Provide pricing or price deduct for alternate seats, both passenger and driver, including 3rd person bench seat.  List manufacturer and model of optional seats offered.

		



		32.14 Provide pricing for factory supplied trailer towing options, including:


A. Indicator for trailer ABS system status provided in the cab.


B. Trailer wiring to the end of the frame 


C. Trailer air brake connectors at the end of the frame

D. Cab mounted hand trailer brake controller shall be provided, when trailer brakes are ordered as an option.  The controller is to be within easy reach of the driver.  State location of controller

E. Glad hands.

		



		32.15 Provide pricing to provide any factory available cab options including:


A. Price to provide any severe service cab options (including aluminum diamond plate tread flooring).


B. Price to provide heater shut off valves.


C. Price to provide map pockets on drivers and passengers door.


D. Price for any available extended cab options.

		



		32.16 Provide pricing to provide stationary grill, state any requirements or restrictions with this option

		



		32.17 Provide pricing for any alternative paint options available from the factory.

		



		32.18 Provide pricing to paint the top of the hood black.

		



		32.19 Provide pricing to provide any factory or component manufacturers diagnostic software and cabling available.

		



		32.20 Quote price to provide any optional extended warranties offered by the factory.

		



		32.21 Provide pricing to provide any factory authorized service technician training available.  Training sessions should be conducted at the City of Seattle specified facility at a date and time mutually agreed upon.  The City expects the trainer to identify components, typical repairs and maintenance of the trucks, inform mechanics on procedures and safety type issues that they need to be aware of, new technologies and other related subjects.

		



		32.22 Provide pricing for three (3) copies each of the following manuals are preferred at time of delivery:

A. Chassis manufacturer's parts and service manual.


B. Engine manufacturer's parts and service manual.


C. Transmission manufacturer's parts and service manual.


D. Rear axle manufacturer's parts and service manual.


E. Suspension manufacturer's parts and service manual.


F. Any and all parts available in CD-ROM format

		



		32.23 Provide pricing for front end PTO and bumper.

		



		32.24 Provide pricing for any fleet appropriate options that would be a benefit to the City of Seattle which have been omitted from this specification.

		



		32.25 Provide pricing for factory CB radio installation kit.

		



		32.26 Provide pricing for factory installed CB radio

		



		32.27 Provide pricing for extra CB radio speaker(s) mounted in the rear upper corner of the cab. 

		



		32.28 Provide pricing for alternate fuel and DEF tanks, sizes and locations.

		



		32.29 Provide pricing and describe any optional exhaust system configurations. 

		





38.0 Options for Class 8 Cab Over Engine Chassis (Pre-selected items below will be a part of the evaluation process)

		38.1 Provide pricing for any alternate engine manufacturers and models offered by the factory.  Describe complete detail including horsepower, torque ratings and curves.  List engine manufacturer provided warranty coverage packages available for engines quoted.

		



		38.2 Provide pricing to provide an engine exhaust brake.  State make, model, and braking capacity provided.

		



		38.3 Provide pricing to provide any alternative automatic transmission models available for each chassis configuration.  Transmissions shall be fitted with PTO provisions and programming shall be determined at delivery.

		



		38.4 Provide pricing to provide alternate mirror configurations, including dual power mirrors, manually controlled mirrors, heated mirrors, above door mirrors and convex mirrors.

		



		38.5 Provide pricing for automatic air tank drains, in lieu of manual drains specified.

		



		38.6 Provide pricing to provide all available capacity air lift, drop axles mounted at a location directed by the FAS engineer.  Drop axle provided shall automatically retract in reverse and shall be steerable.  Wheel and tire provided on lift axle shall be lowest profile 19.5 inch radius tires that meet the load capacity of the lift axle, same manufacturer as chassis tire.  Air pressure gauge and valve for adjusting drop axle pressure will be located outside of cab per Washington State law.

		



		38.7 Provide pricing for alternate GVWRs and their corresponding axle/suspension capacities throughout the range of trucks proposed.

		



		38.8 Provide pricing to provide alternate rear axle suspensions available, including alternate models meeting the base configuration i.e. air suspensions.  List any alternate axle manufacturers and ratings separately.  List any axle configuration options available including differential locking, and traction control options

		



		38.9 Provide pricing to provide alternate front axle/ suspension configuration(s).  List separately any alternative manufacturers and products provided.

		



		38.10 Provide pricing to provide a frame with full length liner.  List section modulus (SM) and frame configuration offered.

		



		38.11 Provide pricing /price deduct for alternate seats, both passenger and driver, including 3rd person bench seat

		



		38.12 Provide pricing for factory supplied trailer towing options, including:


A. Indicator for trailer ABS system status provided in the cab.


B. Trailer wiring to the end of the frame 


C. Trailer air brake connectors at the end of the frame

D. Cab mounted hand trailer brake controller shall be provided, when trailer brakes are ordered as an option.  The controller is to be within easy reach of the driver.  State location of controller

E. Glad hands.

		



		38.13 Provide pricing to provide any factory available cab options including:


A. Price to provide any severe service cab options (including aluminum diamond plate tread flooring).


B. Price to provide heater shut off valves.


C. Price to provide map pockets on drivers and passengers door.


D. Price for any available extended cab options.

		



		38.14 Provide pricing for any alternative paint options available from the factory.

		



		38.15 Provide pricing to provide any factory or component manufacturers diagnostic software and cabling available.

		



		38.16 Provide pricing to provide any optional extended warranties offered by the factory.

		



		38.17 Provide pricing to provide any factory authorized service technician training available.  Training sessions should be conducted at the City of Seattle specified facility at a date and time mutually agreed upon.  The City expects the trainer to identify components, typical repairs and maintenance of the trucks, inform mechanics on procedures and safety type issues that they need to be aware of, new technologies and other related subjects.

		



		38.18 Provide pricing for three (3) copies each of the following manuals are preferred at time of delivery:

A. Chassis manufacturer's parts and service manual.


B. Engine manufacturer's parts and service manual.


C. Transmission manufacturer's parts and service manual.


D. Rear axle manufacturer's parts and service manual.


E. Suspension manufacturer's parts and service manual.


F. Any and all parts available in CD-ROM format

		



		38.19 Provide pricing for front end PTO and bumper.

		



		38.20 Provide pricing for factory CB radio installation kit.

		



		38.21 Provide pricing for factory installed CB radio

		



		38.22 Provide pricing for extra CB radio speaker(s) mounted in the rear upper corner of the cab. 

		



		38.23 Provide pricing to provide three (3) Group 31 - 800 CCA (minimum each) 12 Volt, AGM Optima Yellow Top Drycell batteries in lieu of the quantity specified.  The third battery is to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached)

		



		38.24 Provide pricing to provide four (4) Group 31 - 800 CCA (minimum each) 12 Volt, AGM Optima Yellow Top Drycell batteries in lieu of the quantity specified.  The third and fourth batteries are to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached).

		



		38.25 Provide pricing for alternate fuel and DEF tanks, sizes and locations.

		



		38.26 Provide pricing and describe any optional exhaust system configurations. 

		



		38.27 Provide pricing any fleet appropriate options that would be a benefit to the City of Seattle which have been omitted from this specification.

		





44.0 Options for Class 8 Tractor (Pre-selected items below will be a part of the evaluation process):

		44.1 Provide pricing to provide any alternate engine manufacturers and models offered by the factory.  Describe complete detail including horsepower, torque ratings and curves.  List engine manufacturer provided warranty coverage packages available for engines quoted.

		



		44.2 Provide pricing to provide an engine exhaust brake.  State make, model, and braking capacity provided.

		



		44.3 Provide pricing to provide an engine compression release brake.  State make, model, and braking capacity provided

		



		44.4 Provide pricing to provide any alternative 6 speed Allison automatic transmission models available for each chassis and GVWR configuration.  Transmissions shall be fitted with PTO provisions and programming shall be determined at delivery.

		



		44.5 Provide pricing for any alternate manual transmissions available.

		



		44.6 Provide pricing to provide alternate mirror configurations, including dual power mirrors, manually controlled mirrors, above door mirrors, front hood mounted angle mirrors and convex mirrors.

		



		44.7 Provide pricing for automatic air tank drains, in lieu of manual drains specified.

		



		44.8 Provide pricing for alternate GVWRs and their corresponding axle/suspension capacities throughout the range of trucks proposed.

		



		44.9 Provide pricing to provide alternate rear axle suspensions available, including alternate models meeting the base configuration i.e. air suspensions.  List any alternate axle manufacturers and ratings separately.  List any axle configuration options available including differential locking, and traction control options

		



		44.10 Provide pricing to provide alternate front axle/ suspension configuration(s).  List separately any alternative manufacturers and products provided.

		



		44.11 Provide pricing to provide a frame with full length liner.  List section modulus (SM) and frame configuration offered.

		



		44.12 Provide pricing to provide three (3) Group 31 - 800 CCA (minimum each) 12 Volt, AGM Optima Yellow Top Drycell batteries in lieu of the quantity specified.  The third battery is to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached).

		



		44.13 Provide pricing to provide four (4) Group 31 - 800 CCA (minimum each) 12 Volt, AGM Optima Yellow Top Drycell batteries in lieu of the quantity specified.  The third and fourth batteries are to be wired to City of Seattle auxiliary battery charging system (attached).

		



		44.14 Provide pricing /price deduct for alternate seats, both passenger and driver, including 3rd person bench seat

		



		44.15 Provide pricing to provide any factory available cab options including:


A. Price to provide any severe service cab options (including aluminum diamond plate tread flooring).


B. Price to provide heater shut off valves.


C. Price to provide map pockets on drivers and passengers door.


D. Price for any available extended cab options.

		



		44.16 Provide pricing to provide stationary grill, state any requirements or restrictions with this option

		



		44.17 Provide pricing for any alternative paint options available from the factory.

		



		44.18 Provide pricing to paint the top of the hood black.

		



		44.19 Provide pricing to provide any factory or component manufacturers diagnostic software and cabling available.

		



		44.20 Provide pricing to provide any optional extended warranties offered by the factory.

		



		44.21 Provide pricing to provide any factory authorized service technician training available.  Training sessions should be conducted at the City of Seattle specified facility at a date and time mutually agreed upon.  The City expects the trainer to identify components, typical repairs and maintenance of the trucks, inform mechanics on procedures and safety type issues that they need to be aware of, new technologies and other related subjects.

		



		44.22 Provide pricing for three (3) copies each of the following manuals are preferred at time of delivery:

A. Chassis manufacturer's parts and service manual.


B. Engine manufacturer's parts and service manual.


C. Transmission manufacturer's parts and service manual.


D. Rear axle manufacturer's parts and service manual.


E. Suspension manufacturer's parts and service manual.


F. Any and all parts available in CD-ROM format

		



		44.23 Provide pricing for front end PTO and bumper.

		



		44.24 Provide pricing for factory mounted CB radio

		



		44.25 Provide pricing for extra CB radio speaker(s) mounted in the rear upper corner of the cab. 

		



		44.26 Provide pricing for factory CB radio installation kit.

		



		44.27 Provide pricing for alternate fuel and DEF tanks, sizes and locations.

		



		44.28 Provide pricing and describe any optional exhaust system configurations. 

		



		44.29 Provide discount percentage off of list pricefor  any fleet appropriate options that would be a benefit to the City of Seattle which have been omitted from this specification.

		



		44.30 Provide discount percentage off of list priceto  deduct the engine and transmission software.

		






